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March 26, 2020  

  

Honorable Board of Supervisors  

Administration Building  

1221 Oak Street, Suite 536  

Oakland, California 94612  

  

Dear Board Members:  

  

SUBJECT:  AMEND A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON EVICTIONS 

IN UNINCORPORATED ALAMEDA COUNTY DUE TO INCOME 

LOSS, INCREASED MEDICAL EXPENSES OR CHILD CARE 

NEEDS RESULTING FROM COVID-19, TO EXTEND 

THROUGHOUT ALAMEDA COUNTY 

  

RECOMMENDATION:  

Amend the urgency ordinance, enacted on March 24, 2020 to extend a temporary 

moratorium on evictions due to COVID-19 in the unincorporated area of the County, to 

the entirety of the County.  
 

SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  

On March 24, 2020, your Board enacted an Urgency Ordinance creating a temporary 

moratorium on evictions for renters and homeowners in the Unincorporated County.  

This ordinance was deemed necessary due to the COVID-19 public health emergency 

declared on March 10, 2020 by the County and on March 4, 2020 by the State of 

California On March 16, 2020, the County of Alameda, five other Bay Area counties 

and the City of Berkeley directed residents to shelter at home beginning March 17 

(“Shelter-in-Place Order”). On March 17, 2020 the State of California mandated that all 

state residents “Shelter-in-Place". The implementation of the Shelter-in-Place 

Orders has caused the temporary closure of all non-essential businesses, reducing 

economic activity and as a result, household incomes during this time.    

 

As a result of the Shelter in Place orders, many Alameda County residents have lost 

necessary income to cover rent, mortgage, utilities, food, and healthcare.  Those 

residents financially impacted by COVID-19 may be forced to choose between 

paying their rent or mortgage and having sufficient funds for food, medical care or 

other necessities for themselves and their families.  Alameda County’s homeless 

population lack resources for sanitation, stay in overcrowded shelters, encampments, 

vehicles and other places, and already have a high rate of poorly treated chronic 

illnesses. Any increase in homelessness resulting from evictions would increase the risk 

of transmission of COVID-19 by rendering it difficult or impossible for individuals to 

shelter in place, and to observe social distancing and hygiene practices that are 

recommended to reduce the transmission of COVID-19.  
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This amendment to the Urgency Ordinance expands the ordinance to also cover incorporated 

areas of the County. The County has broad authority to maintain the public peace, health, safety 

and welfare of its residents and, during a local emergency, the Board of Supervisors may enact 

regulations necessary to provide for protection of life.  As a result, on March 23, your Board 

directed staff to bring back an eviction moratorium encompassing the entire County to protect 

the health and safety of residents of Alameda County during this public health crisis.    
 

The Counties of Marin, San Mateo and Santa Clara have all passed Countywide ordinances in 

the past week.   
 

Within Alameda County, several cities have also adopted emergency eviction 

moratoriums.  Under this ordinance, should a city and the County ordinance conflict, the 

stricter ordinance will apply.    
 

FINANCING:  

There will be no increase in net county cost.   

  

VISION 2026 GOAL:  

A moratorium on evictions for COVID-19 affected renters and homeowners will support the 

overarching vision of Thriving and Resilient Population and the 10X goal of Eliminating 

Homelessness by ensuring all residents’ basic needs are met, including facilitating access to and 

retention of safe, stable housing while building resiliency and self-sufficiency among vulnerable 

populations.   

  
  

Very truly yours,  

  

  

Chris Bazar, Director  

Community Development Agency  

  

  

  

cc: Each member, Board of Supervisors  

Susan S. Muranishi, County Administrator  

Melissa Wilk, Auditor-Controller  

Donna R. Ziegler, County Counsel  

Heather Littlejohn, Office of the County Counsel  

Jennifer Schulz, County Administrator’s Office  

Sandra Rivera, Community Development Agency  
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